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retired. They first lived in Antioch. Erastus and Henrietta
purchased a banana plantation in Panama. Taking all of their
belongings they boarded a ship in San Francisco and sailed to
Panama. Upon their arrival they made plans to locate their
plantation. What they found was a few dying banana trees and
the rest looked like the jungle. When they returned to California
they resided in Oakdale. Erastus died in 1918, Henrietta in
1925. Both are buried in the Citizen Cemetery at Oakdale.

Enoch’s wife Lydia, married John Richardson in Sacramento on
March 29, 1873. He had traveled with them on the wagon train
in 1854 and had gone to Oregon. The records show that John
Richardson had a drinking problem long before his marriage.
On May 9, 1872, in Ukiah, he was charged with assault with a
deadly weapon, a “six shooter” pistol. The assault was upon
James Twineham. John and William Higgins posted five
hundred dollars bond for his release. John and William were
landowners in Lake County where John Richardson worked.
They were probably drinking friends. In 1874 the second
offense was an assault with a deadly weapon. He used a knife
against William Brown. Alfred Higgins was a witness for John
Richardson. It was John who introduced Alfred to his
stepdaughter Lydia M Mylar. Alfred in 1876 married Lydia’s
daughter Lydia Margaret Mylar. This marriage lasted a year and
a half and ended in divorce.

Lydia’s marriage to John Richardson (her third marriage)
started out fine, but soon she found out that John was an
alcoholic. One time he was drunk and in jail in Ukiah he
convinced her to sell everything, and come and get him out of
jail. So she did. This was probably during his deadly weapons
charge in Ukiah, 1874. They moved to Cacheville, Yolo County.
When the money was gone, John decided to feave his wife and
family. He never returned. When Lydia’s daughter married in
1876 she signed the marriage license as Lydia Mylar not Lydia
Richardson.

The boys, Enoch Jr. and Thomas J. took their mother Lydia and
sister Rachel, to Los Banos, Merced County, in about 1889
where they homesteaded some land. The type of farming was
dry land farming because here was no irrigation at that time.
The first year was a wet one which made the grass thick and
tall.

They were able to store most of the feed, which carried them
over for several years. Rachel married William McCraney in Dos
Palos on May 2, 1892,

William McCraney died in 1896 and Rachel married his brother

George in 1902. George had been serving a seven-year term in
San Quentin for killing a man when drunk. George was a good

worker, but lacked morals. He went north one day to work and
never returned.

Thomas J. Mylar married Gertrude Brashear on March 29,
1910. In 1915 because of a poor grain crop everyone moved to
rented land around the reservoir until 1920. Lydia, his mother
died on March 13, 1916, and is buried in Oakdale. Enoch Jr.
never married, but worked for the Stanislaus County Road
Department. He and his sister, Rachel lived in Oakdale. Thomas
lived at Valley Home for nine years and Riverbank for sixteen
years. He died on May 23, 1953, and his wife on March 21,
1979. Both are buried at Oakdale.
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and dispersing others. So the young Witherspoons fulfilled their promise of returning speedily to the
Tory camp, bringing the O'Neal mare with them; but under somewhat different circumstances from
what the unsophisticated Tories expected.

The three prisoners taken were Captain Riddle, and two of his noted associates, named Reeves
and Goss. On therr arrival at Wilkesboro, a court martial condemned them to be hung; but as if'to
curry favor with the soldiers, or get them ina condition so he might escape, Riddle treated them
freely to whisky. Learning which, Colonel Cleveland frankly informed him, that it would be useless
to waste his whisky i such efforts--that he would be hung directly after breakfast. The three
notorious freebooters were accordingly executed, on the hill adjoming the village, on-a-stately oak,
which is yet standing, and pointed out 1o strangers-at Wilkesboro-Mrs. Riddle, who seems to have
accompanied her husband on his wild and reckless marauds, was present, and witnessed his
execution.

Next

Home * Index * Surnames * Contact
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Whig--to be used, when in a tight place, to help them out of difficulty, by assuming that they were
patriots of the truest type, Cleveland's commendation passing unquestioned along the borders of
Virginia and the Carolinas. But "Old Round About" had a strong

____________ f:

(&) GreeLr; wgs ogne of Cleveland's heroes. One of his fellow soldiers stole his tobacco from him,
when he threatened he would whip him for it as soon as he should put his eyes on him. Cleveland
expostulated with Greer, telling him his men ought to fight the enemy, and not each other. "T'll give
him a hint of i, any way," said Greer, and when he met the tobacco pilferer, he knocked him down.
Greer's hint was long a by-word m all that region.--Col. W. W. Lenorr.

[Page 443]

suspicion that their urgency for these passports betokened that the moment they were completed,
his days would be numbered; and thus naturally but a poor penman, he purposely retarded his task
as much as possible, hoping to gain time for the expected relief, apologizing for his blunders, and
renewing his unwilling efforts. Several of the Tory party were now gathering up their horses for an
early start, and Cleveland was receiving severe threatenings if he did not hurry up his last passport.

Just at this moment, while Captain Riddle and Zachariah Wells were especially guarding Cleveland
and Captain Ross--the former with Cleveland's pistol presented at his breast, and the latter with his
gun aimed for nstantaneous use, if need be--the relief party were silently creeping up; and the next
moment several guns were fired, and the Whigs rushed up, uttering their loudest yells. Colonel
Cleveland, comprehending the situation, tumbled off the prostrate tree, on the side opposite to his
friends, lest their balls might accidently hit him, and exclaiming, in his joy, at the top of his thundering
voice, "Huzza for brother Bob!--that's right, give 'em h--11" Wells alone was shot, as he was
scampering away, by William Callaway in hot pursut, and supposed to be mortally wounded, he
was left to his fate; the rest fled with the aid of their fresh horses, or such as they could secure at the
moment--Riddle and his wife among the number. Cleveland's servant, a pack-horse for Tory
plunder, was overjoyed at his sudden liberation. Cleveland and Ross were thus fortunately rescued;
and having gained their purpose, the happy Whigs returned to their several homes. William -7
Callaway was especially elated that he had had the good fortune to shoot Wells, who had so badly/
wounded his brother, Richard Callaway, at the ambuscade at the Old Fields. /

z

Shortly after this occurrence, Captain Riddle ventured to make a night raid into the Yadkin Valley,
where on King's Creek, several miles above Wilkesboro, they surrounded

[Page 444]

the house where two of Cleveland's noted soldiers, David and John Witherspoon, resided with therr
parents, and spirited them many miles away in the mountain region on Watauga river, in what is now
Watauga County, were both were sentenced to be shot--blindfolded, and men detailed to do the
fatal work. It was then proposed, if they would take the oath of allegiance to the King, repair to
their home, and speedily return with a certain noble animal belonging to David Witherspoon, known
as "the O'Neal mare," and join the Tory band, their lives would be spared. They gladly accepted
the proposition--with such mental reservations as they thought fit to make. As soon as they reached
home, David Witherspoon mounted his fleet-footed mare, and hastened to Colonel Ben.

Herndon's, several miles down the river, who quickly raised a party, and piloted by the
Witherspoons, they soon reached the Tory camp, taking it by surprise, capturing three, and killing
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group came this route that inchuded Jonathan Hunt, Edward Hughes, Thomas Parker, William Giles,
Willie Ellis, Thomas Foster, and others, leaving the road to the left north of what is now Mocksville.

The Squire Boone-Daniel Lewis group, all related by blood and marriage, took over a
continuous m over four miles in length, réaching from north of the Squire Boone-George
Evans tract, south to within 1,000 feet of where the Armand Daniel family now fives. Upon this tract
they all built homes and it is reasonable to assume that they helped one another in the building.

John Wilcoxson originally received 520 acres, later acquiring more, of the best land of the
group and built upon it one of the better and larger houses, using logs as large as 18-inches by 34-
feet. This is the only one of these first houses still standing,

This Wikcoxson house is also believed to have been used as a fort against Indian attacks for
all the Boones and Wilcoxsons between the years of 1751 and 1755.

At the time of the American Revolution, John Wilcoxson and his wife had reared all of their
11 children, ten of which had left home leaving only the youngest son, William. All the Boones and

7 Wilcoxsons, except fohn Wilcoxson and son, William, were Tories, loyal to the crown. William
was a Whig and rendered valuable service to the colonies in the struggle. John Wikcoxson remained
at his home and is quoted as saying:

'T am old. T have lived here more than twenty years, raised all my children, have a large and
good plantation with several houses, and I do not want to lose it and do not want to move. IfT aid
the colonies and the war is won by them I will be in good shape. If the crown wins, I have enough
sons and sons-in-law that were loyal to the king to protect me. Heads I wins and tails I win."

And win he did. He received his grant in 1783 of 640 acres, the limit, and retained
possession of 165 additional acres, which was later sold with a grant never being issued.

At this time John Wilcoxson was 64. William later married and moved to the 165 acre tract
which he purchased from his father in 1798. John Wilcoxson was living with his son at that time,
having sold the 640 acre tract to Abraham Welty in 1787.

John Wilcoxson died sometime between 1798 and 1805, between the ages of 79 and 86.
Sarah Wilcoxson died around 1814, in her 90's while fiving with her grandson Jessic Wilcoxson in
Kentucky.

In 1788 Abraham Weity sold the tract to John Rowland. In 1796 John Rowland sold to
Edward Parker, the great-grandfather of the late A. T. Grant and the Great-great-great grandfather
of Armand T. Daniel, the present owner.

Parker was an educated planter, reportedly with a lot of gold and many slaves. Tradition has
it that he was looking for three things when he left Virginia for this area: (1) The best farm he could
find; (2) The best house; and (3) Nearness to a good school. He found all three in the John
Wilcoxson plantation.

The farm was level, or practically so, with many acres on Bear Creek, and very fertile. The
house was the best in Davie County in 1796 and remains even today one of the better built houses.
There was also a good school one mile away at "Bentley." Bentley is said to be the first named
community in present Davie County. Here was located a trading post and postoffice. When
Archibald Carter purchased Bentley around 1823, the school was know as the "Baldy Carter
School." It was at this school that Peter S. Ney taught school. Ney lived with the John A Meroneys
at Liberty and walked through the woods to Bentley where he taught the grandchildren of Edward
Parker, along with the Carters, Kellers, Daniels, Andrew Selzers, Thomas McQuinns, H. R.
Austins, and others.
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Pat Frunz, a descendant of John & Sarah's daughter, Sarah Willcockson Hagans, kindly transcribed this article for us exactly as

it appeared in the newspaper. Pat is a co-founder and current board member of the Willcockson Society.

Please note: The sources and authenticity of the information in this article are not known to us at this time. It is, however, a

very intriguing read!

The Saga of the Wilcoxson House

By Gordon Tomlinson

In the second article of the current series on the Boone family the marriage of Sarah, the
eldest daughter of Squire and Sarah Boone, to a John Wilcox was reported. The Boones were
Quakers. John Wilcox, who was soon to adopt the name of Wilcoxson, was not. Because of
"marrying-out of the faith" Squire Boone and his daughter were censured by the Exter Meeting of
Berks County, Pa. This is believed to have been one ofthe reasons for the migration of the Boone
family to what is now Davie County.

Mr. and Mrs. John Wilcoxson were members of group that began migration southward
around May, 1750. In all probability they traveled the "Great Wagon Road" that ran from
Philadelphia to Shallowford. What became known as "The Shallowford Road" then proceeded
south through what is now Forsyth and Davidson counties and onto Salisbury.

However, research by Armand Daniel indicates that the Boone party, instead of following the

Shallowford Road, turned to the right after crossing the river and took an old Indian trail. This trail
entered present Davie County about two miles east of Huntsville and crossed the present
Farmington-Huntsville Road a short distance north of the Burr Brock homeplace. The route
continued on by Wyo to what is now the Pino section of Davie, then to the Eaton's Church area
and on to the Bear Creek Church area, then down Bear Creek 1o the George Evans place (where
Squire Boone built his-eabin). From where Squire Boone | settled, the route continued on into the
area where the present prison camp is located, to Swicegood's Store (Jericho), then on through the
present Seaford Lumber Camp area, on through a graduated slope to the present lands of A and
Buck Seaford. (It was on this tract that Daniel Lewis, also believed to have been one of the leasers
of the group, built one of the first log cabins in this area). Crossing Bear Creek the trail went
southeast following the division line of what was to be two of Davie's oldest and largest plantations.
John Wilcoxson built to the north on 800 acres and on the south was the Archibald Bentley 900
acre plantation.
i ' "The old deeds call for this road and when the carth is plowed deep clear evidence of the
. {1. ‘" road can be seen, even though not used for more than 175 years," said Armand Daniel.
l}}! After leaving the Wilcoxson and Bentley plantations,’ﬂle/réad passed the
Keller, then the lands of Jessie Pearson, to "The Shoals" where Cooleemee is no:
spot the Yadkin could be foarded for travel onto Salisb s
"Many sections of this trail, later to become a road, can be pinpointed with certainty. And, it

is for sure that all of the original log cabins and houses ofthose of the Boone party were built on this

road, " said Mr. Daniel

" Mr. Daniel says his research indicates that in addition to the Boones, the John Wilcoxsons,
the Daniel Lewis', the party also probably included George Wilcoxson and family, Issac Wilcoxson
and family, the John Frohocks, a man by the name of McElenhenny. A short time later another
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Elijah Willcockson and Charlotte Calloway Family Home page
Willcockson Genealogy Polls
Waulfeck's Wilcoxson and Allied Families Book Homepage
Willcockson Genealogy FORUMS
The Willcockson Society HOME

The Willcockson Society

A Genealogical Society Celebrating Willcockson and Allied Families
(including Wilcoxson, Wilcoxen, Wilcox)

presents

Willcockson Genealogy Library

[photo is not from the article]

The Log House That John Built:

The John and Sarah (Boone) WILLCOCKSON Home in Mocksville, North Carolina
Part 2

The following article written by Gordon Tomlinson appeared in the Enterprise-Recorder, July 24, 1975. It is under copyright
and may not be reproduced for commercial purposes. The Willcockson Society is grateful to the author and the publication for
allowing us to make it available on our website to the many descendants of John and Sarah (Boone) Willcockson.
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The kitchen area and the staircase

Another exterior view (below)

Exterior view, 50-foot log
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Here are some web sites connecting Nancy Wilcoxson to the Benjamin Greer family.

1. Going Home for History. Greer Family of Wilkes County, North Carolina .... Children of Benjamin
Greer and 2) Sarah Atkinson Jones (widow of Thomashttp:/Avww.fmoran.com/wilkes/greer html -
Jones; (Look under the 3" generation.)

2. Jul 17, 2008 ... Once in North Carolina, John and Sarah Boone Wilcoxon built a log ... an early and
prominent citizen ofBoone); Nancy Wilcoxon Greer (from ...
http://www.highcountrypress.com/weekly/2008/07-17-08/danielboone_days.htm -

3. pr19, 2009 ... 25 Descendants of Sarah Boone. John Wilcoxson, 1George Wilicockson ... Sally b
1809 d: 1856 # WILC344 | | 8 WILCOXEN, Nancy b: 1812d: ...
http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb. ancestry. com/~dav4is/ODTs/WILCOXSON.shtml

4 Jun 26, 2010 ... Sarah was born to Sarah Jarman Morgan and Squire Boone, Quakers of
Berks County, Pennsylvania. ...Nancy WILLCOCKSON b: 17 MAY 1743 in Lancaster

Co.,PA ... David Wilcoxson (1742 - 1834)* Samuel Wilcoxen (1755 - 1825)* ...
http://www.findagrave.com/cgi-bin/fg.cgi?page=gra&GRid=39781990 -
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birth, marriage, or death dates are known fr David.
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Generation No. 2

2. GEORGE2 WILCOXSON (JorN') was bom March 10, 1691/92, and died Bef. October 25, 1739 in
Chester Co., PA. He married ELIZABETH ANN POWELL April 15, 1719 in Radnor Manor, Chester Co.,
PA, daughter of ROWLAND POWELL and MAUD RICHARDS. She was born March 10, 1694/95 in Radnor
Manor, Chester Co., PA, and died Bef. 1740 in Chester Co., PA.

Children of GEORGE WILCOXSON and ELIZABETH POWELL are:

/i JOHN3 WILCOXSON, b. September 06, 1720, PA; d. Af. February 26, 1798, Rowan Co., NC;

/. SARAH BOONE, Abt. May 29, 1742, Lancaster/Berks Co., PA; b. June 07, 1724,

Lancaster/Berks Co., PA; d. Abt. 1815, Madison/Estill/Clark Co. KY.

iii. ISAAC WILCOXSON, b. Abt. 1724, PA; d. September 11, 1765, Rowan/Davie Co., NC; m. (1)

MARTHA BANE, July 1746, Old Swede Church, Wilmington, New Castle Co., DE; b. Abt. 1727,

PA; d. September 09, 1757, Rowan/Davie Co., NC; m. (2) EDITH PHILPOT, Abt. 1758,

Rowan/Davie Co., NC; b. April 23, 1740, NC; d. Bef 1824, Shelby Co., KY.

iii. GEORGE WILCOXSON JR., b. Abt. 1727, PA; d. September 1785, Rowan/Davie Co., NC; m.

ELIZABETH HALL; d. December 15, 1782, Rowan/Davie Co., NC.

iv. HANNNAH WILCOXSON, b. Abt. 1729, PA; d. Af. 1810, Rowan/Davie Co., NC; m. DANIEL

LEWIS; b. 1730, /of Berks Co., PA; d. 1801, Rowan/Davie Co., NC.

v. MARY WILCOXSON, b. Abt. 1734.

...yahoo.com/mc/showMessage?sMid=0... 2/2
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The Wilcoxson family (answer about George) Saturday, July 24, 2010 9:05 PM
"Pat Hagan" <pghagan@comcast.net>
glennh815@yahoo.com

Descendants of John Wilcoxson

Generation No. 1

1. JouN! WILCOXSON was bom Abt. 1666 in Cossal, Nottingshire, England.
Child of JOHN WILCOXSON is:

i. GEORGE? WILCOXSON, b. March 10, 1691/92; d. Bef October 25, 1739, Chester Co., PA; m. ELIZABETH ANN
POWELL, April 15, 1719, Radnor Manor, Chester Co., PA; b. March 10, 1694/95, Radnor Manor, Chester Co., PA; d. Bef
1740, Chester Co., PA.

Notes fr GEORGE WILCOXSON:

Marriage Record dated 15 Feb 1719, page 357:

"Whereas Geroger Wilcockson son of John W i i or and Elizabeth
Powell daughter of Rowland Powell ofthe toy Pennsylvania
Spinster, haveing declared their intention on M: e bebre severall Monthly meetings of the Peopl QUAKERS according

to the good Order used among them whose proceddings therein affer a deliberate Con sideration thereof and haveing consent of her
Parents and Relation concemed nothing appearing to Obstruct were Lef to their feedom to proceed by the said Meetings. NOW
THESE ARE TO CERTIFIE all whom it may Concem that fr the fall accomplishing of their said Intentions this fiffeenth day of
the Second Month (called April) in the year one Thousand Seven Hundred and nineteen. They the said George Wilcockson and
Elizabeth Powell appeared in a publick Assembly ofthe sd people at their publick Meeting house at Haverford aoresd And the
sd.....As Wittnesses thereunto have also to these presents Sett our hands the day and year above written. Signed by; John
Blumston, John Ozley, Daniel Hunphrey, Henry Lewis, Wm. Musgrave, Jno. Wood Jr., Evan Bevan, Rich Moore and George
Wilcockson, E her mark, Elizabeth Wilcockson. Rowland Powell Senior, Roland Powell Jr."

Taxed in Uwchlan Twp., Chester Co., PA in 1726, 1730, 1732, and 1737.

ABSTRACTS OF , PA LAND RECORDS Vol. 2, 1729-1745, by Carol Bryant, F6:74: Deed 30 Dec 1730,
Gw.wimnw_a, to Phillip Yamell of Edgmont, yeoman. George Wilcockson fr 21 pounds grants to
Phillip Yamall a tract of Uwchlan bounded by land of David Davis, Joseph Phipps, David Roberts, John Evans and Thomas Pugh,
wn;g;ining 95 acres. Signed: George Wilcockson. Delivered in the presence of Audry Roberts and Ruth Roberts, Recorded 6 Oct
1740. —

WARRANTIES OF LAND IN THE COUNTY OF CHESTER 1733-1858, 3rd series vol. 24: 6 Nov 1734, Survey of Chester
Co., land to George Wilcockson, 200 acres.

Will Book I, P. 177 (1714-1758) Chester Co., PA: Elizabeth Willcockson was granted administration of the estate of George
Willcockson 25 Oct 1739. A bond of £160 with sureties Phillip Yamall and Joseph Pugh was filed on the same date by Elizabeth
Willcockson. Original papers (in Envelope No. 0677, pocket 1, No. 173) were the bond and the inventory:

Inventory ofthe Estate, Goods, and Chattles of George Willcockson, dec'd. included a tract of land containing 95 acres 45,
Eight......containing 8 acres 3, Hay and com in the stacks 5 6, com in the ground 2, cows and horses 77 15, waring aparel and
household goods 7 6, implements of husbandry ware 2 8, weavers, looms and geares belonging 3 16. Appraised by Edward Goffand
Joseph Pugh.

Estate File #704, 17 Apr 1740, Phillip Yamal, John Wharton and Thomas James, of Chester Co., PA, yeomen, bound unter Peter
Evens, Reg. General to administer the probate of Elizabeth Wilcockson, deceased...before 5th of May...with orphans court
named... or chattels and credits delivered to pay to such person or persons as appointed by the court. Phillip Yamal is to make an
inventory or possessions and credits of the estate.

21st of 2nd month 1740: inventory: Right to remainder ofa lease £3, com in the ground, one weavers loom, etc. Appraised by
Edward Goffand Joseph Pugh.

ORPHAN'S COURT: Petition of John Yamell of the Township of Edgemont and County of Chester in the Province of
Pennsylvania at Orphans Court held in Cester, 21st day of September 1742. Jhenothy George Wilcox of Youkland in the County of
Chester, died-in said year 1739 and his widow Elizabaeth Wilcox administered to her Husband, Deceased, and that she also dyed in
ye year 1740-and allyed children remaining unprovided fr by her deceased Husband, Werd by her (crossed offis - "untill they
arrived at age, except") taken cared off untill they word fitt to be bound out to trades except Mary Wilcox the youngest surviving
which was lost at age of five years without any fiend to take any care ofher, and Phillip Yamell, administering to said Elizabeth
Wilcox as principal credetor finding her estate £l very sefficiant, could not allow her any support. John Yamoll, the petitioner did
then out of compasion to the said child take her to his house and has since maintained her past his own proper cost and charge for
about 18 months. Therefore Beggs this Honourable Court will be pleased to bind her out to him untill she arives att the age of
cigthteen years. Your Petitioner Shall greatfully acknowd this Mo 21-1742. John Yamall.

It is thought that at least 2 sons, John and George,-went to live-with-Squir¢ Boone and his wif Sarah Morgan. Both George
Wilcoxson (d. 1739) and Squire Boone were weavers, living only about 15-20 miles apart. George's son, JohnWilcoxson, married
Squire's daughter, Sarah Boone: Tsaac Wilcoxson (1724-1766) is buried-in-the same NC cemetery as Squire Boone, 5o he is thought
to be another son of George. David Wilcoxson married Eleanor Boone, but her relationship to the Boone family is unknown, and no
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Re: [WILCOX] Sarah Boone Wilcoxson by "Darris Gayle Cottrell Raizor" <
» cgraizor@bellsouth.net>
o Re: [WILCOX] Sarah Boone Wilcoxson by JBletch@aol.com
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‘RootsWeb: WILCOX-L Re: [WILCOX] Sarah Boone Wilcoxson

Minutes

> show that he apologized for permitting the marriage to take place, and

> promised to be more careful in the future. But in 1747, five years later

> his eldest son, Israel, likewise marred 'out' of the Church, and this time
> the situation became much more involved, both Squire and Israel receiving
> severe reprimands. S o

i E

>

The Church, being a vital part of the lives o f the colonists in those
days,
> a great deal of moral fortitude was needed to stand us against its edicts;
> but Squire, by this time, had come to the conclusion that his children
should have the right to marry whomever they pleased, so he decided it was

>
> best to remove them far from the watchful eye of the Church...."
>
=
> Tim - The family moved to North Carolina and for the most part became
> Baptists.
>
>
> from the book again, page 16 -
> CHILDREN:- (all born in Pennsylvania)
>
> Sarah Boone, b. 7 June 1724; m. John Wilcox (Wilcoxson), in 1742"
> = =
>From the book - Tribe of Israel Boone - compiled by Jackie Ned & Witt
Boone -

> 1986, page 8:

>

> "On 22 October, 1984, the Piedmont Committee, Howell Boone President

> celebrating the 250th anniversary of Daniel B oone's birth, unveiled a two
foot

> by three foot bronze plagque commemorating the Boone Family in Davie
County,

> North Carolina. The plaque was erected at the Joppa Cemetery near

> Mocksville, ..."

>
> Tim - from the plaque - in part:
>
>

"The eleven children of Squire and Sarah (Morgan) Boone all came and lived
in
> present Davie County. They were Sarah (Boone) Wilcockson (Wi lcoxen)..... uf

— e —

> Many, many years ago (ok I'm NOT that old) I visited what was supposedly
the

> house of Sarah and John Wilcoxson in North Carolina and have a paper
regarding

such - around here somewhere. I'm still seeking it.

Tim

>
>
>
>
>
>
>

R et S e S AR
> To unsubscribe from the list, please send an email to
WILCOX-request@rootsweb.com with the word 'unsubscribe' without the quotes
in the subject and the body of the message

This thread:

o Re: [WILCOX] Sarah Boone Wilcoxson by JBletch@aol.com

Page 2 of 3

o Re: [WILCOX] Sarah Boone Wilcoxson by "Darris Gayle Cottrell Raizor" < cgraizor@bellsouth.net>

o Re: [WILCOX] Sarah Boone Wilcoxson by Tim Stowell < tstowell@chattanooga.net>
.
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From: "Darris Gayle Cottrell Raizor" < cgraizor@bellsouth.net>

Subject: Re: [WILCOX] Sarah Boone Wilcoxson.

Date: Sun, 6 May 2007 05:42:29 -0400

References: <3.0.5.32.20070506003901.01 f8d4b0@mail.chattanooga.net>

Tim:

At a 2000 Boone Reunion in Wiles Barre, North Carolina, we visited all the
important surounding areas, i.e., cemetery where they are all buried (except

John's Sarah - I think that is what I'm going to start calling her), the
library in Davie County, drove by their properties.

At the cemetery, all the cousins on the trip st ood around the monument and

our picture was taken.

I feel certain, that as many recorded records that I have seen declaring he r
middle name to be Cassandra, that there must be something to it. Otherwise,

why would it have begun? She is the only Sarah that I have found to have

'that' middle name. As we all know, there were many Sarahs both Bo ones and
Wilcoxsons, Daniels, and Squires as well. It is not news by any mea ns for
those of us who do research, to be provoked with our ancestors by naming all

their children after themselves and their parents.

Tim, thanks for submitting your records.

————— oOriginal Message -----
From: "Tim Stowell" < tstowell@chattanooga.nets
To: < wilcoz@rootsweb.coms

Sent: Sunday, May 06, 2007 12:39 AM

Subject: Re: [WILCOX] Sarah Boone Wilcoxson

> Not taking sides in this debate, I offer what I have on these names:

>

> >From "Descendants of Israel Boone" by Alice H. Boone, Springfield, MO
1969

> pages 15-16:

"These Boones were among the most prominent fa milies in the community,

trustee of Oley Meeting in 1736; and in 1739, he was made overseer.
However, when his oldest daughter, Sarah, mar ried in 1742, John Wilcox,
rimanded by the Meeting, and the

>
>
> Squires standing in the Friends' Society must have been good, as he was
>
>
>

who was not a Quaker, Sg
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The above 3 are listed next to each other.
1793-1794: Rowan County Petition for a separate election: William
Willcockson, John
Willcoxon
1795: Rowan County tax delinquents: John Wilcockson

EARLY TAX RECORDS IN KENTUCKY FOR THE
WILCOCKSONS

Tax Records of Kentucky:
Fayette County — 7/24/1789: Aaron Wilcocks, David Willcocks,
Daniel Wilcocks,
Ruth Wilcocks, John Willcocks

Madison County — 1795 (Isaac Wilcoxon)

Hosting for this site generously donated by Narnia Pet Behavior and Training, Inc

Total Visits 158727
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Boonesborough, took a canoe across the river to hunt grapes. Five
Indians captured them. The girls knowing their fathers would follow
them would gore(?) their high heel shoes in the ground and make all the
sign they could. The Indians would shake the tomahawk over their
heads — the girls holding their heads to them and saying “hit.” The
Indians would laugh and say “good sojer.” They then put them on a
horse, when they would fall off, and pretend they couldn’t ride. The
Indians would again shake the tomahawk’s over their heads. The girls
would hold their heads, and tell them “hit.” The Indians would laugh
and say, “Good Sojer.” Between sunset and dark, (after) they camped
on a small creek, the fathers crawled up the creek opposite to them.
Three of the Indians were blowing up the fire and two getting wood,
and the girls sitting on the log. They fired on them, killed the three at
the fire, and recaptured the girls, and got them home safely. Yours,
Wm. Wilcoxson

ROWAN COUNTY TAX RECORDS FOR THE WILCOCKSONS

1759: John Wilcockson
1761: Isaac Wilcockson 1 wp.
John and “son Georgie.” (part of Rowan County that became
Davie county)
1768: John Willcockson/David Wilcocks — 2
Isaac Wolcokson = 1 (future Davie County area)
1772: Isaac Wilcox/William Wilcox —2
George Wilcox — 1
Joshua Wilcockson ~ 1
Peter Wilcockson — 1
1778: John Willcoxon 3.0.0 (valuation numbers in English money)
John Willcoxon Jr 1.0.6
George Willcoxin 2.7.6
Isaac Willcoxen 2.17.1
George Wilcoxen 4.4.8
1782: List of Rowan County men whose property faced confiscations:
George Wilcockson
John Wilcockson
David Willcockson
Isaac Wilcoxson
1787: Rowen County:
Samuel Wilcockson — 3 wm up to 21 and 50+, 1 wm 21-50, 3 wf
John Wilcockson - 3 wm up to 231 and 50+, 1 wm 21-50, 3 wf
William Wilcockson - 1 wm 21-50, 1 b. (In Davie County area)
1789: Rowen County — John Wilcockson 200 A. 1 wp (later became
Davie County)
1790: U.S. Census Wilkes County, North Carolina
Wilcox, William, 3 males 16+, 4 males 16-, 3 females
Greer, Benjamin, 3 males <16, 6 males 16+, 1 female.
1790: U.S. Census Rowan County:
Wilcoxon, John, Sr: 1 male 16 up, 1 male <16, 1 female
Wilcoxon, John, Jr: 3 males 16 up, 2 males <16, 2 females
Wilcoxon, William, 1 male 16 up, 4 males <16, 6 females.
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Walker, 1783 to 1871, (6) Diana Walker, 1787/8, (7) Joel Hayden
Walker, 1789, (8) Jane D. Walker, ~1791, (9) Rachel Walker, ~1791,
(10) Elias Walker, ~1793, (11) Pleasant Walker, ~1796, (12) Sarah
Walker, ~ 1798.

13. Rachel Wilcoxson was born in Rowan County, North Carolina
about 1765, and died about 1821 in Callaway County, Missouri. She
married about 1790 in Rowan County, North Carolina to William
Bryant (1748-1833). William Bryant was noted at Fort Boonesborough
in 1775 and later an early settler of Bryan’s Station and helped to build
a blockhouse there. He returned to North Carolina and enlisted three
times in the American Revolution in 1780 and 1781, and was at the
Battle of Guilford Courthouse and Siege of Yorktown. William and
his wife are alone in their household in 1810 Estill County, Kentucky.
William was part of an interesting lawsuit in 1815, which involved his
son, Hiram Bryant, and Squire and Elijah Wilcoxson (see details in
Samuel Wilcoxson Chapter under Squire Wilcoxson). Later William
and Rachel Bryant moved on to Missouri. He applied for a pension at

Boone County, Missouri on June 25“‘, 1833.
Probable locations that William Bryant lived:

Fayette County, Kentucky, perhaps 1775 to before 1780
Madison County, Kentucky

Montgomery County, Kentucky

Estill County, Kentucky

Boone County, Kentucky?

Callaway County, Missouri?

Caldwell County, Missouri

Children of William Bryant and Rachel Wilcoxson:
(1) Hiram Bryant, ~1792, (2) Rachel Bryant, (3) Susan Bryant, ~1800,
(4) George Bryant, (5) Jeremiah Bryant, 20 August 1791 to 11 July
1834, (6) Thomas Bryant, 10 January 1795 to 5 September 1845, (7)
Benjamin Bryant, ~1797, (8) Henry Bryant, ~1802 to 1840, (9) William
Bryant, 1822

OLD HISTORICAL WILCOXSON LETTER:

A. Letter by William Wilcoxson to Lyman Draper, postmarked
December 25, (1863) Greenburg(?), Kentucky, answering questions.
From Draper Manuscript Collection, courtesty of Wisconsin
Hositorical Society, Series C, Volume 23, #57. Topic: Daniel
Boone. The manuscripts give no indication who his parents were.

December 23, 1863
Dear Sir:

I received your letter inquiries. I have heard my father say a
great deal about Boone’s acts as a soldier, as they were old hunters
together, but the particulars now seem dim to me: One only seems
fresh in mind — that is, Boone’s daughter and two of Mr. Callaway’s at

http://www.planetmurphy.org/pagebuild.php?pagebody1=WilcoxJohn.htm 5/20/2009
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9. Israel Wilcoxson was born in Rowan County, North Carolina
before 1755 and died 1781 near Bryan Station, Fayette County,
Kentucky at 26 years of age. See Indian story of Daniel Wilcoxon.
“Israel Wilcockson™ is listed as a Virginia solder in the Revolution —
probably Kentucky County, Virginia (Revolutionary Soldiers of
Virginia,” by Eckenrode, 1911).

Possible land worked by Israel Wilcoxson

10 December 1780: Levi Todd Assee of Israel Wilcox this
day claimed a preemption to a tract of land of 400 Acres at the State
price in the District of Kentucky lying between the lower Blue Licks
to Limestone run and Lawrence Creek about 10 Miles from the Licks
and two Miles from Wm. McConels, including a spring and
improvement by the said Wilcox making an Actual scttlement in
April 1779, satisfactory proof being made to the Court, they are of
Opinion that the said Todd has a right to a preempt’n of 400 Acres of
land to include the above Location and that a Certificate issue
accordingly (From Certificate Book of the Virginia Land Commission
1779-1780,” by the Kentucky Historical Society, 1981). This land is
about 10 miles northeast of Blue Licks Battlefield State Park and
closer to the Ohio River.

10. Samuel Wilcoxson was born in Rowan County, North Carolina on
24 February 1755 and died 16 September (or November) 1825 at
Stanton, Powell County, Kentucky. Samuel married Anna Jordon at
Rowan County, North Carolina. See next generation.

11. William (Red) Wilcoxson was born before 1758 in Rowan
County, North Carolina and died October 1830 in Barren County,
Kentucky. William is the youngest son and married Nancy Sparks,
about 1775. Red had his will probated March 18, 1829 at Barren
County, Kentucky. He is on the 1800 Wilkes County, North Carolina
tax list and later, the Barren County tax list for 1830:

Children: (1) George Wilcoxson, 1783, (2) Issac Wilcoxson, 1784, (3)
Thomas Wilcoxson, (4) William “Redhead” Wilcoxson, 1794, (5)
Martha (Patsy) Wilcoxson, (6) Racheal Wilcoxson, 1800, (7) Nancy
Wilcoxson, 4 April 1808, (8) Sarah (Sally) Wilcoxson, (9) Mary
(Polly) Wilcoxson, 1782, (10) Daniel Wilcoxson, 1775-1850.

12. Mary Wilcoxson was born about 1760 and died 1820 at Feme
Osage, Boone County, Missouri, or Calloway County, Missouri. Mary
married Renaldo Walker on 27 November 1778 at Wilkes County, N.C.
— county record.

Children: (1) Nathaniel Walker, 1779, (2) John Walker, 1779, (3)
Mary Walker, 1780, (4) Samuel Wilcoxson Walker, 1782, (5) Jesse P.
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Cemetery, east from Bagdad, Shelby County, Kentucky.

In a reminiscence written in 1898 about Daniel, a son related
what a grandmother had told him regarding an Indian attack near
Bryant Station. ...”When plowing time came Daniel Wilcoxson and his
brother were in the fields, Daniel was plowiiig and his brother sitting on
a log picking the flint of his gun (one would plow and the other watch
for Indians) when an Indian slipped up and tomahawked one on the
log. Daniel ran, the Indian after him. The Indian was so near that when
Daniel was on top of the fence, the Indian was at the bottom. ...Daniel
barely escaped with his life.” From Filson Club History as related by
Hazel A. Spraker in “The Boone Family”.

Early Kentucky Land of Daniel Wilcoxson

10 January 1780: “Daniel Wilcoxson this day claimed a
settlement and preemption to a tract of land in the district of
Kentucky lying about 8 or 9 Miles from Bryants Station on the
dividing ridge between the big fork of Elkhorn and Coopers run, a
branch of Licking Creek, Including a sinking Spring by settling in the
Country in the year 1777 and residing ever since; satisfactory proof
being made to the court, they are of Opinion that the said Wilcoxson
has a right to a settlement of 400 Acres of land in include the above
location and the preemption of 1000 Acres adjoining and that a
Certificate issue accordingly” (From Certificate Book of the Virginia
Land Commission, 1779-1780,” by Kentucky Historical Society,
1981, page 124). Coopers Run is about 4 miles northwest of Paris,
Bourbon County, Kentucky.

9 September 1791, Daniel Wilcoxson had a land grant of 200
acres surveyed in Woodford County on the North Fork of Greers
Creck.

10 June 1779, Daniel Wilcoxon is listed as a pioneer soldier
with Captain John Holder’s Company in present-day Madison County,
at and near Boonesborough.

In 1795, he is on the Woodford tax lists as Daniel Wilcoxson.
In the 1810 U.S. Census of Woodford County, Kentucky, Daniel
Wilcoxson was noted as head of a family of eight.

In 1835, Daniel Wilcoxen, Lieutenant, was listed on a 1835
Revolutionary War pension list (North Carolina line) in Shelby County,
Kentucky, beginning 2 March 1833 with $120 annual allowance. No
age was given.

Children: (1) William “Black-Head” Wilcoxson, (2) Patsy “Martha”
Wilcoxson, (3) Polly “Mary” Wilcoxson, (4) Isaac Wilcoxson, (5)
Frankie Wilcoxson, (6) Annie Wilcoxson, (7) Louis Wilcoxson, (8)
Sallie Wilcoxson, (9) Josephine Wilcoxson, (10) Daniel Wilcoxson
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River: (1) undated, 150 acres, and listed Sevier-Green Counties, (2)
entered 29 October 1783 and granted 1 November 1786, 150 acres, (3)
entered 10 November 1788 and granted 18 August 1795, 400 acres.

(B) George Willcockson: Green County on Dumplin Creek: (1) entered
14 April 1780, granted 12 July 1794, 150 acres, (2) entered 21 April
1784 and granted 1 November 1786 on the waters.

6. Isaac Wilcoxson was born in Bucks County or Lancaster County,
Pennsylvania before 1751 and died before October 10, 1783, at
approximately 32 years of age. He married Ruth Johnston on 17
October 1775.

7. Elizabeth Wilcoxson was born in Lancaster County, Pennsylvania
17 March 1743 and died 1815 in Mt. Pleasant, Maury County,
Tennessee. She married Befjamin Cutbirth, St. about 1769 in Rowan
County, North Carolina. =

T. S. Calloway reported Benjamin Cutbirth, Sr. on hunting and
trading trips to the Mississippi River and New Orleans between 1765-
1770. In 1767, the author, John Bakeless, recorded him hunting with
Daniel Boone and that Cutbirth’s explorations helped Boone to become
interested in Kentucky. In 1783, Elizabeth (Wilcoxson) Cutbeard was
noted as a member of Eaton’s Church in Rowan County, North
Carolina and apparently married Benjamin about 1773.

“I am unable to tell you where Grandfather Benj. Cutbirth, Sr.,
went to from this country (North Carolina). His son Benjamin settled
in what is now Johnson County in Tennessee. ...Uncle Benjamin
finally moved to the State of Iowa and was living there in 1842, but I
have not heard of him since.” (From T. S. Callaway, Ashe County,
North Carolina, as written to Lyman Draper on 25 December 1883;
Draper Manuscript Collection/Wisconsin Historical Society, Series C,
Volume 9, #133)

Some locations for Benjamin Cutbirth, Sr. (Cutbeard, Cutberth, etc)

1783 Rowan County, North Carolina

1787 Wilkes County, North Carolina

1790 Fort Boonesborough, Kentucky

1796, 1798 Carter County, Tennessee tax record: Benjamin Cutberth,
Sr.

Children: (1) Daniel Boone Cutbirth, 1760/62, (2) Benjamin
Cutbirth Jr., ~1764, (3) Mary Cutbirth, ~1770, (4) Sarah Cutbirth,
~1772.

8. Lt. Daniel Wilcoxson was born 13 March 1755 at Rowan County,
North Carolina or Berks County, Pennsylvania and died 16 June 1837
in Shelby County, Kentucky. He married Sarah Faulkner or Faulconer
at Bryans Station October 1780. Daniel is buried at R. Brewers Farm
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Daniel Wilcoxson, (5) Mary M. Wilcoxson, (6) John Wilcoxson, (7)
Isreal Wilcoxson, who married Polly Fleming and moved to Boone
County, Missouri, (8) Amos Wilcoxson, (9) Isaac Wilcoxson

3. Nancy Wilcoxson was born 17 May 1743 to 1745 at Lancaster 7
X\ County, Pennsylvania and died 30 October 1790 at Wilkes County,

North Carolina. Nancy married Benjamin Greer and her household of 9

males and 1 female was noted on the 1790 Wilkes County census.

“My Grandfather (Benjamin Greer, Sr.), was seven months younger
than Daniel Boone to the day and date ...removed to Kentucky about
the year 1800 and settled there in Green County on Green River ...and
died there.” (condensed from four letters dated 1884 and 1885 by Jesse
Greer, Jr., at age 78, Jefferson, Ashe County, North Carolina — Draper’
Mmm Society, Series C, Volume
9, #23, 24, 25,27,29)

Children: (1) Rachel Greer, 31 March 1768, (2) Jesse Greer, Sr., )L
14 November 1778, (3) David Greer, 2 February 1781, @) William
Greer
4. Sarah Wilcoxson was born before 1755 and died after 1800. She
married, date unknown, to Thomas Hagans (born <1752 to >1801).

Known locations or land owned were:

a. 1778 Rowan County, North Carolina Buffalo Creek in the
Forks of the Yadkin.

b. Fayette County, Kentucky from 1787 to 1792 on or near 4
Mile Creek. Some of this land was turned over their son, David Hagans
in 1800.

c. Clark County, Kentucky (established 1792), from 1793-1795,
1797-1799

d. Madison County, Kentucky tax records of 1800 and 1801.

Known children were: (1) David Hagans, Sr. (~1772 to 1 August
1854 Clark Co, Ky.), (2) Sarah Hagans (>1775->1840), (3) Rachel
Hagans (? to 6 May 1832 Estill County, Kentucky), probably married
Thomas Brinegar. (From Pat Frunzi e-mail 2 January 2002)

5. George Wilcoxson was born in Lancaster County, Pennsylvania
before 1751 and died after March 16, 1799 in Sevier County,
Tennessee, at approximately 48 years of age. There is a 1799 will filed
by George Willcockson in nearby Jefferson County, Tennessee, (will
book 1, page 82) which has not been seen and possibly is his. He
married 1% to Elizabeth Beam on October 20, 1767 in Rowan County,
North Carolina (county record). George married 2" to Elizabeth
Pinchback on 23 February 1789 at Rowan County, N.C. The following
Tennessee land grants may belong to our subject, George Wilcockson:

(A) George Willcockson: Green County on north side of French Broad
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Apparently, the original log cabin of John and Sarah
Wilcockson, thought built between 1752 and 1756 on south end of Bear
Creek, has survived in Davie County, and over the years has been
incorporated into newer sections of a larger private home. The original
part of the house was a 17 x 33 foot room with floor planks three inches
thick and over 1 foot wide, with a narrow staircase to the attic. The
location of the house was not given, and is not open to the public.
(From “Salisbury Sunday Post, 1B, 3 Augum Gordon

Tomlinsorf; courtesy of Pat-Fraazh)-————_
CHILDREN OF JOHN AND SARAH WILCOCKSON

Children — the list varies in numbers and names and suggests
more research is needed. No will or probate has been found for John or «%
Sarah Willcockson. As to t}mme
that there wasn’t a complete list of names. Jermaiah F. Willcoxen, in
an 1861 letter to Lyman Draper, named six sons and four daughters of
Samuel Wilcockson (From Draper Manuscript Collection, courtesy of
Wisconsin Historical Society, Series C. Volume 24). Missing on his
list is David Wilcoxson and George Wilcoxson. Also notice the similar
1755 birth year for Daniel Wilcockson, Jr., and Samuel Wilcockson.

1. David Wilcoxson was born in Lancaster County (now Berks
County), Pennsylvania, on 22 October 1742, and died 25 February
1832, probably Giles County, Tennessee, at 89 years of age. He
married Kezia , date unknown. David Sr. is listed on the 1811
Giles County tax list and on a 1830 Giles County, Tennessee census,
adjacent to his sons, David Wilcoxson Jr., Jesse Wilcoxson, and Isaac
Wilcoxson.

Children: (1) Aaron Wilcoxson 1 April 1789 — 4 January 1824, (2)
Isaac 1798-1843, (3) David Wilcoxen, Jr. 9 March 1796 — 4 February
1883 and married Sabrina Cutbirth, (4) Jesse Wilcoxson, 16 September
1798 — 27 January 1843, (5) Hannah Wilcoxson, about 1798, (6) John
Wilcoxson, (7) Isaac Wilcoxson

2. John Wilcoxson, Jr. was born in Lancaster County, Pennsylvania
about 1743 and died after 1830 in Howard County, Missouri. He
married 1780 to Sarah Notson in Fayette County, Kentucky.

Some locations for John Wilcoxson, Jr.

1795 Clark County, Kentucky: John Wilcox

1810 Clark County, Kentucky, near children, John Wilcockson and
Daniel Wilcockson.

1820 Clark County, Kentucky, near children, Israel and Isaac
Wilcoxson

Children: (1) William Wilcoxson, 1780 to 1864, (2) Martha
Wilcoxson, 1785, who never married, (3) David Wilcoxson, 1794, (4)
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John is said to return to North Carolina by 1783, and lived in

North Carolina until 1798 or beyond. “John Wilcoxon, Sr.” is recorded

on the U.S. Census of 1790 Rowan County, North Carolina, with his

wife and one male under age sixteen. In 1798, the last of his lands in

Rowan County were sold to his son, William (witnessed by son,

Samuel, and grandson, Squire Willcockson). He probably died shortly

after this.

LAST DEEDS OF JOHN WILLCOCKSON

26 February 1798. John Willcockson, of Rowan County,
North Carolina, deeded to William Willcockson of Rowan County,
for 525 pounds a parcel of land containing 165 acres on both sides of
Bear Creek...part of tract of 640 acres granted unto Jacob Koller,
conveyed by J. Koller to John Willockson and now by John
Willcockson to William Willcockson. Witnesses were Samuel
Wilcockson and Squire Willcockson. Signed: John (x) Willcockson.
(Rowan County Deed Book 19, page 254)

26 February 1798. John Willcockson of Rowan County, North
Carolina deeded to William Willcockson for 250 pounds, estimation
of 160 acres on Bear Creek including John Rowland’s line, now
Edward Parkers to Jacob Keller corner. Witnesses were Samuel
Willockson and Squire Willcockson. Signed John (x) Willcockson.
(19:256)

“Sarah Boone Wilcoxson died at-the-home-ofher daughter,
Elizabeth Cutbirth in 1815 in Madison County, Kentucky. ...No will of
either Sarah(BOONE)-Witcexsen-or-her-hustarid John Rave been found,
and no complete list of this children” (From “The Boone Family — A
genealogical History of Descendants of George and Mary Boone,” by
Hazel A. Spraker, 1923). This is disputed, as the Cutbirth family was
thought to be living in Tennessee at this time.

John Willcoxen “died in Rowan County, North Carolina, after
which she removed to Kentucky with her Grandson, Jesse Boon
Willcoxen, with whom she lived until her death which took place in the
year 1814, at the age of about 97 years.” (From a 1861 letter by
Jeremiah F. Willcoxen to Lyman Draper in Draper Manuscript
Collection, courtesy of the Wisconsin Historical Society, Series C,
Volume 24.). Another source stated that Sarah was probably buried in
or near Jesse B. Wilcoxson’s farm in southern Clark County, Kentucky,
not far from Boonesboro. Jesse (~1780) is believed to be the son of
Samuel Wilcoxson (1755).

JOHN AND SARAH WILCOCKSON -

%‘ OLDEST ORIGINAL LOG HOUSE IN DAVIE COUNTY,
N.C.
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boys to defend it, and yet the settlers voted to fight, instead of
surrender. For two days, Daniel Boone pretended to negotiate a treaty
while the settlers slipped in food, cattle, hogs, horses and supplies into
the fort. Finally, after the Indians attempted to grab the Kentuckians at
the negotiations, the battle for Fort Boonesborough began. They
attempted to torch the fort, pretended they had left the area, and began
several tunnels from the riverbank into the fort. So desperate were the
settlers that Daniel fashioned two wooden canons out of logs. One
cannon managed to get off one shot before it burst. Little food was left
after a week of fighting. Then a heavy rain developed one night, and
when it ceased, the sound of digging in the tunnel could no longer be
heard. The heavy rain caved-in the tunnels and caused the Shawnee
Indians to quit the 9 to 11 day siege. The following morning, the
people from Fort Boonesborough came out and searched the woods for
Indians, but they had gone.

John Wilcockson was pr oongsborough after this
Jattle, between the years 1778 to 1783. Wilcockson settlers at Fort
Boonesborough were: ==

William “Billy” Wilcox (son of George Wilcockson, born
~1725).

Daniel Wilcoxon, Sr.

Elizabeth Wilcockson, who married Benjamin Cutbirth.

John and Sarah “Sally” (Boone) Wilcoxon, Sr.
Rachel Wilcoxon, who married William Bryant.
(From “Early Settlers of Fort Boonesborough,” by H.

Thomas Tudor, 1995)

\%’(y&nzs_tgtion is another settlement that some Wilcoxsons —
Daniel Wilcoxson, Sr. and Israel Wilcoxson lived at or nearby. The

00 was abo i ortheas! = ington,
Kentucky, on the southern bank of the North Fork of Elkhorn. The
Bryans settled at the Station in 1779, but a cabin had been built by
Joseph Bryan, a son-in-law of Col. Daniel Boone, in 1776. The history
of Bryan Station included a number of Indian attacks. In one of the
worst attacks in 1782, the women of the Station prevented its fiery
destruction by carrying badly needed buckets of water from the spring
to the station while surrounded by Indians. A memorial exists for their
efforts. Men at the Station included Daniel Wilcoxen, son of John Sr.
Daniel Wilcoxen was in Captain in Holder’s Company on 10 June
1779.

There is confusion on the name of Bryan’s Station. In 1779 and
1780, eight Bryans made 13,000 acres of land entries near the Station.
Joseph, William, John, and James Bryant entered an additional 6,000
acres. The names Bryan, Bryan’s, Bryants, and Bryant Station, were
used at different times by Daniel Boone.

WILCOCKSONS MOVE BACK IN NORTH CAROLINA 1783

http://www.planetmurphy.org/pagebuild.php?pagebody1=WilcoxJohn.htm 5/20/2009




image32.jpeg
PlanetMurphy.Org: Page 3 0of 13

1778 within the Granville area. In 1778, this changed and a N
claim for land could be entered in county records, because British land /
(/7 /M /
Lt

rights ceased during the American Revolution.

Our first clue when John Wilcockson left Rowan County comes
in August 8, 1778, when “John Willcoxon, Sr.” and son “Samuel B “j/ ot
Willcoxson™ are named nonjurors (no-shows) in Captain Lyons
District. losetl L‘/

— 1779
WILCOCKSONS IN EARLY KENTUCKY

John Wilcoxson moved to Kentucky, possibly between 1778
d 1782 and was noted at Fort Boonesborough, or living nearby.
Future research may better define the dates. Amentry (below) by the
Daughters of the American Revolution states John Wilcoxson was a
soldier of Virginia, which must mean Kentucky County, Virginia.
What do they mean by “soldier?” Do they know something we have
not found yet?

From Daughter of the American Revolution in their
Centennial Edition, Part ITI

John Wilcoxson, Senior: born about 1720 in Pennsylvania
and died 26 February 1798 in North Carolina. Married Sarah Boone.
Soldier Virginia.

Sarah (Boone) Wilcoxson: Born 7 Junel724 in Pennsylvania
and died 1815 Kentucky. Married John Wilcoxson. Patriotic service,
Virginia.

There is a large monument at Fort Boonesborough, with the
names of the settlers on it. Both John Wilcoxson and his wife, Sarah,
are engraved on this monument, which is most impressive.

The children of John Wilcoxson, Sr. also came to early - W"
Kentucky, with Samuel Wilcoxson in 1775 and 1785, Rachel &
(Wilcoxson) Bryant in 1775, Daniel Wilcoxson by 1777, Israel
Wilcoxson by 1779, John Wilcoxson, Jr., by 1780, Elizabeth
(Wilcoxson) Cutbirth by 1790. A few stayed in Kentucky, such as
Daniel Wilcoxson and Israel Wilcoxson, and others such as Samuel
Wilcoxson returned to North Carolina. This is an impressive list for
such an early date in Kentucky (statehood in 1792)!

In September 1778 at Fort Boonesborough, 440 Indians and 12
French-Canadians surrounded the fort and demanded surrender while
displaying British and French flags. The Indians were lead by the
Shawnee Chief Blackfish; Lieutenant-Governor Hamilton who sent
them out to demand surrender of the Kentuckians and bring them back
to Detroit as subjects of the King. The fort only had about 60 men and
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The March 1772 Rowan Count ordered John Luckey, Robert
Johnson, Samuel Luckey, William and James and Morgan Bryan,
JOHN WILCOCKS, James Brown, Theops Morgan, Thomas and Will
Willson and Luke Lee to lay off a road from the road leading from
Salisbury to the shoals of the Yadkin River. Then they were to do the
same between Second and Third Creek with this road running towards
Renshaw’s Ford on the South River, then along the dividing ridge
between Rocky and Hunting Creek, until it intersected Hunting Creek,
and from the head of the creek to the next ford above Widow Backis on
the main Yadkin River, known as Samuel Bryant’s Bottom.

DEEDS OF JOHN WILCOCKSON

/ 9 October 1779. #2328. John Wilcockson has a land entry

request for 640 acres on Bear Creek, including his improvement and
the old survey run by James Cailer (Koller?). This is probably State
of North Carolina land grant #342, granted 10 October 1788.

/ 9 January 1780, Warrant. Entry #2295. John Wilcockson is

granted 640 acres on both sides of Bear Creek, in Rowan County,
adjacent Benley’s corner and Thomas Mansfield’s corner. North
Carolina Grant #959, surveyed 22 February 1783, and signed John
“J” Wilcockson.

10 October 1783, the State of North Carolina Grant #861 titled
640 acres to John Wilcockson on both sides of Bear Creek, adjacent
Bentley and Thomas Maxfield.

DEEDS MENTIONING JOHN WILCOCKSON

21 March 1780, Daniel Lewis was granted 100 acres on Bear
Creek adjacent to Benjamin Bartley, Abraham Wiltey, John
Wilcockson, and John McElhaney.

1 August 1783, #2602. Thomas Maxwell was deeded 150 acres
on Bear Creek adjacent to John Wilcockson, Senior.

1 September 1783, Thomas Maxwell was also granted by the
State #645, 327 acres on the west side of Bear Creek adjacent John
Wilcockson and his former survey.

Bear Creek is northwest of Salisbury, Rowan County, North

Carolina, by about-20-mites-irrDavie-County—An €X on 15 needed
for these deeds. John Granville, who never saw his vast North Carolina
lands, died in 1763, forcing his land offices to close. Consequently, it
was not possible for a settler to obtain a land title between 1763 and
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CHAPTER 6F
John Willcockson (Wilcockson, Wilcoxson - no consistent spelling)
Sarah Boone

NEW FOR 2002
e William Wilcoxson letter of
1861

e Old Wilcockson Cabin exists!
e More on Israel Wilcoxson

John Willcockson (Wilcoxson)
Bomn: 6 September 1720 at Chester County (later Berks County),
Pennsylvania.
Married: 29 May 1742/3/4 at Exeter, Berks County (old Lancaster
County), Pennsylvania
Died: 26 February 1798 in North Carolina. Also, he was rumored
to die 3 February
1782 at or near Bryan Station, Fayette County, Kentucky.
Other records
give evidence for a later date in North Carolina, such as 1798-
1805.
Parents: George Willcockson and Elizabeth Powell

Sarah Cassandra Boone
Born 7 June 1724 at Bucks County, Pennsylvania
Died 1815 Madison County, Kentucky
Parents: Squire Boone (1696 — 1765) and Sarah Morgan (1700 —
1777)
214 Edition, Morphew/Murphy Story — J.R. Murphy, 1 June
2002

MARRIAGE OF SARAH (BOONE) WILCOCKSON
MOVEMENT AWAY FROM PENNSYLVANIA

Sarah Boone was a Pennsylvania Quaker, and was condemned
when she married outside her church to John Willcockson. They
possibly migrated to North Carolina with the Squire Boone family
between 1750 and 1758. A question arises whether they stopped a year
or two in Western Virginia before moving on to North Carolina. Later
they moved to Kentucky and then returned to North Carolina.

JOHN WILCOXSON IN NORTH CAROLINA RECORDS

On 9 January 1765, Rowan County court books ordered the
appointment of overseers for a road, which included John Willcox to
cover the road from the South Yadkin to Israel Boon’s old place. Later
in 9 May 1765, John Willcockson witnessed a deed by David Jones to
Edmond Dedman in Rowan County.
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6. Mart Mylar
1821

7. Rachel Mylar Mar B. C. Kindred
22 Sep 1901 1900

8. Julia Ann Mylar Mar John Hunt
Mar 1823 1840 Mar 1818
22 Sep 1901 1900

9. James Letcher Mylar Mar Mary Ann Neal
17 Apr 1825 27 Nov 1848 3 Mar 1828
3 Dec 1897 31 Aug 1902

10. Isaac Mylar Mar Talitha Wooley
24 Dec 1827 11 Oct 1849 22 Oct 1834
28 Jan 1911 5 Jul 1897

11. John Mylar
1829 Stayed in Missouri

12. Thomas Mylar Mar Sarah Francis Bradford
1832 26 Feb 1863 1846

Surnames: Boone Jett Mylar Wilcoxson
Viewed 2744 times
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27 Jan 1872
2nd Mar Lydia (Neal) Sale
21 Apr 1854 5 Jun 1830

2. Franklin Mylar Mar Nancy Waggaman
1812 1835
1871

2.1 Nancy F Mylar Mar William F Stingley
20 Dec1837 1 Dec 1853 1822
25 Jun 1907 1873

2.1.1 Nancy E Stingley Mar George W Maddox
10 Jan 1855 2 Jul 1868 1836
4 Nov 1922

2.1.2 Julia Ann Stingley Mar David Boyce
3 Nov 1856 25 Sep 1870

9 Mar 1940

2nd Mar Frank W Brown

1857

28 Jun 1936

2.1.3 William Stingley Mar Lucy B Rodgers
1858 4 Jul 1880
9 Nov 1923 20 Dec 1907

2.1.4 Ellen M Stingley Mar Fred L French
1862 26 Dec 1878 1852
1919

2.1.5 Emma Jane Stingley Mar Fred Peaslee

1865 24 Dec 1884 16 Oct 1858

12 Feb 1944 18 Apr 1906

Died in a landslide in Aptos, caused by the SF earthquake.

2.1.6 George Stingley
1868

2.1.7 Walter Stingley
1873
8 Jul 1937

(2) Franklin Mylar 2nd Mar Tymandra Brooks
1812
1868

2.2 Fanny Mylar Mar Thomas Roberts
6 Jul 1856 20 Sep 1872 5 Jun 1846
21 Apr 1914 12 Aug 1910

2.3 Franklin Boone Mylar

1854

3. Israel Mylar Mar Mary Walters
1816 17 Jun 1837 12 Feb 1816
29 Apr 1884 15 May 1866

4. Douglas Richard Mylar
1818

5. Fanny Mylar
1820
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William and Nancy lived on the land at San Juan where they
raised cattle. On September 6, 1858, Israel and William sold
the land to Joshus Twitchell the original owner. William used his
share to buy a sawmill on the Pajaro River near Chittenden that
did not do well. William and his family moved near Gilroy and
he was a stock farmer in 1860. By 1865 the family moved to
Corralitos, and in 1870 he was listed on the census as a master
miller in the gristmill.

In 1870, Fanny Mylar, daughter of Franklin and Tymandra
Mylar was living with her sister Nancy Stingley in Corralitos
while she went to school. Fanny married T. S. Roberts of
Corralitos. They later lived in Monterey County, but are buried
in the Pioneer Cemetery in Watsonville.

William Stingley met his death through an accident in 1873. He
was killed when working at the Gamecock lumber camp in the
Browns Valley area when a redwood tree fell on him. He was
buried in the west hillside cemetery in Corralitos. The cemetery
was located on the old Benjamin Hames property. Nancy
Stingley married Thomas French in 1876.

In 1880 William H. Roberts who owned the property gave
notice to those who had loved ones in the Corralitos cemetery
to remove the remains as he had plans to plant apple trees on
the land. Nancy and Thomas French purchased a piot in the
IOOF Cemetery, now the Pioneer Cemetery, in Watsonville in
1880, known as the French plot. William was exhumed and
buried in that plot by his wife. Nancy died in 1907 and is buried
with her first husband William Stingley in the French plot in
Watsonville. The Stingley family is buried there, but there is no
trace of Thomas French, Nancy’s second husband, or Fred
French, husband of Ellen Stingley.

John Mylar was the only member to stay in Missouri. Did he
stay in Missouri to take care of his mother? We have not been
able to trace or locate John. If it was in Gentry County, the
records were destroyed by fire in 1884 and we may never
know. We were able to locate a John Mylar in Missouri in 1870,
but this John turned out to be from the Robert Mylar line.

d and Consent From

Witness to the consent was James’ friend Stephen Jett.
Likewise James was a witness for the marriage consent and
marriage bond of Stephen’s in February 1806.

Judge W Rodes Shackelford wrote a book Madison County

Marriages. “James Miller to Henry Jett on 2 October 1806”.
Again the author takes the liberty of changing Mytar on all

documents to Miller. The name Henry is for Henrietta.

This is the marriage bond for Stephen Jett to marry Rachel
Mylar in February 1806. James Mylar, Rachel’s brother, co-
signed with Stephen Jett. On page 32 is the marriage bond for
James Mylar co-signed by Walter Horn. This marriage consent
form for Henrietta Jett was witnessed by Stephen Jett.

CHILDREN OF JAMES AND HENRIETTA MYLAR

1. Enoch Mylar Mar Miriam Donald
1809
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William Hatton Alexander was a person who was always around
and intermixed with the Mylar family, yet there is little formal
information on this family. It is believed that William, born in
Ohio in 1822, married Mary Mylar in Gentry County, Missouri.

William is listed in The History of Gentry and Worth County as a
county resident, who along with Frank Mylar, Enoch Mylar,
Robert Mylar, and Israel Mylar went to California in 1850. In
this story and in other material except for legal documents
some of the Mylar were called by other names. Isaac was called
Ike, Franklin was Frank, and James L was called Bob or Robert.

William Alexander settled in Tuolumne County. When living at
Shaws Flat in 1858 he had power of attorney for William
Stingley and Nancy Mylar to sell their property at Shaws Flat.
About 1860 William moved to Mariposa County. The family
lived in Granite Springs near the town of Coulterville until 1867.
In the mining claim of 1865, William is listed as a partner as
well as eight others of the Mylar family.

In 1867 William moved down to Snelling in Merced County. He
was a miner and did not own property. In 1872 William
returned to the town Mariposa to sign over his share of the
1865 mining to William Wiggins of San Bautista. William H.
Alexander continued to live in Snelling until 1876, only to
disappear. It is interesting that about the same time Thomas
Mylar, also disappears. Did they go to find new mining areas?

After the death of his wife Tymanda in about 1868, Franklin
moved to Corralitos, Santa Cruz County, where his son-in-law
William Stingley, had moved a few years before. It was to be
near his daughter and see that the children went to school and
received a good education. June 16, 1869, Franklin purchased
one hundred acres from W. S. Cavanaugh and G. J. Exicey. The
property was located north of the Corralitos Flouring Mill road
and ran along the west side of Corralitos Creek for three
quarters of a mile near the mouth of Eureka Canyon and
extended for a half mile to the west. The land was not cleared,
as he wanted to sell the lumber from the land. He died there in
1871. Map on page 72 shows the location of the property.

Frankiin died intestate in 1871 and the estate was not probated
until 1904. 1t is believed that Franklin was buried in Cosumnes
Township, Sacramento County with his wife Tymanda. The
property was rented for a minimal amount of money. The
children of Franklin were Nancy, who married Thomas Roberts,
and Boone Mylar, who moved to Montana. Julius Lee, a
Watsonville attorney, was appointed the administrator of the
estate. The probate closed on January 6, 1905, and Elmore J.
Lee purchased the land.

William Stingley and Nancy F. Mylar were married on Thursday,
December 1, 1853, at Shaws Flat, Tuolumne County. She was
the daughter of Franklin and Nancy Mylar. William lived in
Shaws Flat and mined with some success. The family moved to
San Juan Township, Monterey County in the fall of 1855 and
went into partnership with Nancy’s uncle Israel on one hundred
and sixty acres, one mile east of the city of San Juan. Back at
Shaws Flat lived another uncle, William H. Alexander, whom
they gave power of attorney to transact their business. Their
house and property was sold to Daniel Knapp in January 1856.
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